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Six adventurous men and a steam engine are responsible for one of the most successful businesses in Evansville's his-

tory. Since 1873, when the firm first opened its doors, the Baker Manufacturing Company has provided continuous 

employment in the Evansville. 

The six men included two hardware merchants, Caleb Snashall and Lansing Mygatt; two general store operators, 

Almeron Eager and his brother-in-law, William Smith; a blacksmith, Allen Baker; and Levi Shaw, an inventor and 

eventually a salesman for the Baker firm. They were well known and trusted members of the Evansville community. 

Each man invested one thousand dollars and others made smaller investments. 

On September 12, 1872, a group of potential investors met at the Evansville Review Office to form a company to 

manufacture the double acting steam engine invented by Shaw and Baker. Even thought the plan for the engine was 

only on paper there was a great deal of interest in the project. 

More people attended the meeting than had been expected. At the meeting, a committee of five men was chosen to 

solicit potential investors. The committee included Allen S. Baker, Caleb Snashall, Professor George Bradley, C. K. 

Landon and George Shaw. 

Although many of the names of the smaller investors are not known, Evansville's first school teacher, and retired 

farmer, Levi Leonard recorded in his diary that he gave $5 toward the construction of the first building for the new 

firm. 

By early October, there were enough investors to begin the process of creating a model of the engine. Allen Baker 

took the design for the engine to the Harris Manufacturing Works in Janesville to have a model built. 

In the winter of 1872-73, the Harris Manufacturing Works built a model of the steam engine. Allen Baker made trips 

to the factory to check on the progress of the machine. By chance, on December 2, 1872, the editor of the Review was 

a passenger on the same stagecoach that Baker was taking to Janesville. 

The following week, the trip was reported in the Review, along with comments about Allen Baker. "Mr. Baker expati-

ated at length upon the merits of his new Rotary Engine, which he is manufacturing at the Harris Iron Works." 

Two months later, on Monday, February 17, 1873, the model of the new rotary steam engine was tested at the Lehman 

Brothers Furniture Factory in Evansville. Again the Review reporter was present to view and tell potential investors 

about the test. 

According to the Review, the engine had three movable parts and no "dead points". The spherically shaped machine 

had pistons that worked like a slowly twirling penny. 

Baker and Shawôs model was tested by placing a belt on the pulley of the engine. The belt was then attached to the 

driving shaft of the planer. As soon as the steam was up, the new engine began to work. The men put heavy oak 

boards the planing machine to test the engine's horsepower. It passed the test "with the greatest ease", according to the 

reporter who witnessed the experiment. 

Almost immediately, the men realized that the new steam engine was probably not going to sell well enough to make 

the company profitable and decided to also do repairs and general machine work. The February 26, 1873 Evansville 

Citizen-Review announced, "We understand that the Rotary Steam Engine Company has been thrown up and the fran-

chises turned over to a new company recently organized for the purpose of doing general machine work. In the mean-

time tools will be fitted up for manufacturing the engine, which is the indirect purpose of the new company." 

On March 6, the articles of partnership were signed and the men agreed that Caleb Snashall would serve as the com-

pany's first president; Almeron Eager, treasurer; William S. Smith, Secretary and Allen S. Baker, general superinten-

dent and foreman. At the same meeting, the men agreed to order the needed machinery and to build the foundry and 



machine shop. 

The company solicited small amounts of money from other investors and within a few days nearly $200 was raised. In 

early April, A. S. Baker and the other partners decided on a location for their new company, which was officially 

known as, A. S. Baker & Co. 

Land near the furniture factory and the railroad tracks seemed ideal. According to Rock County Deed records, on 

April 4, 1873, John and C. Godfrey Lehman sold a piece of land on the south side of Church Street to Allen S. Baker, 

et al. for $200. The land was 128 feet long and 198 feet wide. 

The April 9, 1873 Evansville Review announced that the stone and lumber for the new building was on the grounds. 

Work progressed throughout the spring. By the end of April the wood frame building was nearly completed. The new 

machinery arrived in early May. 

In the meantime, two of the partners, the hardware merchants Snashall & Mygatt, were manufacturing cheese factory 

equipment, including vats, hoops and cans. It was expected that their connection with the new foundry and machine 

shop would give them additional facilities for increasing their production. 

The shop was in operation by July 1873, with two employees, including Allen Baker who was the shop superinten-

dent. Bakerôs experience as a blacksmith was helpful in getting the new business off the ground. 

The A. S. Baker Company employees were kept busy repairing farm machinery. Caleb Snashall painted a sign for the 

new enterprise that read, "Foundry and Machine Shop." The Evansville Review reported that the first blast of the 

foundry furnace was made in early October 1873. 

By the following year, the Baker Company had a new product, one that would bring success to the business. The firm 

began manufacturing a windmill called "The Monitor", named for the ironclad war ship used during the Civil War. 

One of the first windmills was put up on the grounds of Snashall and Mygattôs Hardware store. The hardware store 

also served as general agents for the new Monitor and demonstrated its usefulness to farmers. 

Ad from the Evansville Journal 1874 

The July 1, 1874 issue of the Evansville Review declared the Monitorôs success. "The mill had scarcely received a 

thorough testing when farmers noticing the many excellencies, determined on adopting it to the many other kinds now 

being introduced to the public." Snashall and Mygatt were the first general agents for the windmill. 
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That same month, Caleb Snashall made a trip to Iowa to promote the windmill. Nearly all of the principals in the firm 

advertised the company products whenever they made business trips to the west. Over the next few years, before the 

company hired salesmen, Almeron Eager, Levi Shaw, and Allen Baker promoted the companyôs products wherever 

they traveled. 

The first advertisement for the Monitor appeared in the September 29, 1874 issue of the Evansville Journal, published 

by Prof. George Bradley. A drawing of the new windmill at work on a farm was accompanied by the following text: 

"This popular wind Mill which is so rapidly superseding all others, when introduced is sold on easy terms by Snashall 

& Mygatt, Evansville, Wisconsin." 

The Baker Company had not even issued catalogs of their new product before the company was inundated with orders 

for the windmill. By the late fall, the windmill was so successful that the company decided to expand its market into 

Minnesota. State and local fairs were another means of advertising the Baker Company products. Allen Baker was 

most often the companyôs representative at their fair displays. 

In October 1874, Levi M. Shaw sold his share in the Baker Manufacturing property to his other partners for $700. 

Shaw moved to Preston, Minnesota and became the companyôs first official traveling salesman. He began selling the 

Monitor windmills, iron pumps and cheese factory equipment advertised in their catalogs. By May 1875, the company 

had received so many orders for windmills and pumps that it was "beyond their present ability to dispatch them". 

The following May, the Evansville Review printed the first edition of the illustrated catalog for the A. S. Baker & 

Company. There were several styles of pumps and other iron goods, as well as the windmill. One of the new products 

was a "very strong and convenient" jack screw was manufactured and sold by the company. Within a few months, the 

company had orders for 60 windmills to be sent to Minnesota. 

The increased business encouraged the company to expand their buildings. An 80-foot, two-story addition was made 

to the machine shop, in the summer and fall of 1877. That year the company manufactured 1,800 iron pumps and 100 

windmills. In just four years of operation, the company had increased the number of employees from two to twelve 

men. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Baker advertisement from the August 13, 1879 Evansville Review, Evans-

ville, Wisconsin 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The companyôs advertising and good quality products were gaining the company an expanded market. In the spring of 

1879, Allen Baker traveled to Nebraska and took one of the Vaneless Monitor Windmills to demonstrate to farmers 

and implement dealers. He returned to Evansville with 75 orders to fill. 

 

In addition to working in the foundry and acting as a salesman, Allen Baker also had time to create new inventions 

that improved the companyôs products. In 1879, Baker received a new patent for an improvement to the motion of the 

windmill that transformed a crank motion in a circulation motion. This allowed a miniature feed mill to be operated by 

the windmill. The windmill also now had half the number of joints, of the older model. This made it easier to control. 

For the next few years, the companyôs ads included a picture of the windmill and a cut-away picture of a farm building 

with the mill grinding feed for the animals. 

 

The company reorganized in the spring of 1879 and received a state charter as the Baker Manufacturing Company. 

The capital stock was $20,000 divided between the five remaining partners, Caleb Snashall, Lansing Mygatt, Almeron 

Eager, W. S. Smith and A. S. Baker. The company reported about $20,000 in sales each year and employed twenty 

men. 

 

In 1880, a new foundry was built. The Baker Manufacturing Company moved into their new foundry in late March 

and made the first blast from the new furnace. "They now have plenty of room and can do even better work than be-

fore," the March 31, 1880 Review noted. By late April Bakerôs was also installed several new machines. 

The advertising and promotion by the salesmen created sales of the windmills further and further away from the com-

panyôs base in Evansville. There were reports of sales of the windmills to New Mexico. Having the companyôs build-

ings nearly adjacent to the Chicago and Northwestern Railroads tracks was a great boon to the companyôs ability to 

quickly fill sales orders. 

 

In 1880, the company added more traveling salesmen to its staff. In addition to Levi Shawôs Minnesota territory, 

James Osborn became the general agent for the Bakerôs Illinois territory and Arvin Potter was assigned to the Iowa 

territory in May 1880. Allen Baker continued to personally oversee the exhibitions at state fairs. 

 

One Sunday morning in May 1880, the company officials and Evansville citizens were frightened by the call of "Fire". 

Someone saw smoke coming from the Baker foundry. The fire alarm was sounded and when the volunteers arrived at 

the scene, they found a pile of oil-saturated sawdust that had started burning near one of the machines. 

 

The fire companyôs engine and pump would not work, and they could get no water from Allenôs Creek. The Baker 

Company got one of their own pumps and soon there was a good stream of water pouring on the fire. There was only 

smoke damage, but the threat of fire was very real. "Had the fire got a good headway the damage would have been 

immense. But it was good luck all around," the Review reported in the next weekôs issue. 

 

With disaster only temporarily averted, the Company continued to make progress. In 1880, Allen Baker was issued 

two new patents, one for a pump and the other for a mechanical movement in the windmill. The "improved Monitor" 

was put on display at Snashall & Mygattôs hardware store with a miniature grist mill so that farmers could see the ad-

vantages of investing in the Baker products. 

 

The company expanded once again by purchasing more land for new buildings. In November 1880, A. S. Baker & Co. 

purchased land from Henry Delpheny, just west of the original structure. The land deal was very profitable for the 

sellers. Delpheny and his wife Catherine had purchased the lot for $200 in 1876 and four years later sold it to Bakers' 

for $440. 

 

The company built a stone building for its foundry on the land purchased from Delpheny. The construction began in 

March 1881. The 50 x 100 feet building had a 25 x 35 feet engine room. The roof of the old wooden foundry building 

was also raised and new flooring was put in place. 

 

By 1882, the Evansville Enterprise declared that the "Baker Manufacturing Company has brought more money into 

town than any other concern and greatly improved the place, and should also be encouraged." The article noted that 

the company had recently increased the capital stock to $100,000 and added a new partner, M. V. Pratt. 

The company continued to purchase land. Dr. C. M. Smith sold the firm part of his pastureland, which bordered the 

Baker Company in May 1882. 

 

In June 1882, the company decided to build its own water tower for fire protection. They placed the tower in front of 

the new stone foundry building. 

 

The company had plenty of competition from windmill factories in other Wisconsin cities. The Waupun windmill was 

manufactured at Waupun, Wisconsin and was sold locally by J. Bullard & Company. The Chicago and Northwestern 



Railroad installed an Eclipse windmill at the local depot. The Eclipse was manufactured at Beloit. 

 

Farmers were encouraged to support the local manufacturer and improve their efficiency on the farm. The new Baker 

products could save hours of work. 

 

One farmer living west of Evansville gave rave revues to the windmill. The Enterprise newspaper reported that "Mr. 

N. Pike of Jug Prairie, took home one of the Baker windmills last Friday. Uncle Nate says that he has had enough of 

pumping water by hand from four to six hours per day for stock. 

 

Bakerôs sent out another catalog, printed by the Enterprise in February 1883. A thousand of the 12-page booklets were 

distributed. 

 

 

The Baker Company was in a prosperous condition. An 1883 birds-eye view of the city showed three large buildings 

owned and operated by the Baker Manufacturing Company. Tall smokestacks proclaimed success and the newspaper 

reported sales of 1,000 windmills and 2,000 pumps by a workforce of 40 men at the beginning of 1883. 

1883 Bird's Eye View of Evansville's industrial buildings 

 

Allen Baker was always ready to seek improvements to the products the company manufactured. In 1883, the Baker 

Company employed another inventor. In the spring of 1883, Leander Hoskins, a student at the University of Wiscon-

sin School of Engineering, also worked at the Baker Company. 

 

That year, Hoskins received a patent on his design for an 18-foot windmill. The model was made and tested at 

Bakerôs. In June 1883, Hoskins received a patent on the machine and the Baker Company began to manufacture 

Hoskinsô invention on a regular basis. 

 

Just when it seemed that everything was progressing for the Baker Company, disaster struck the industrial sector of 

Evansville in the spring of 1884. On April 16, 1884, at 2:30 p.m. the villageôs night watchman, a Mr. Hollingsworth, 

was making his rounds in the vicinity of the Baker Manufacturing Company and the Lehman furniture factory. He saw 

an unusual light in the upper story of the building used by the Baker Company for making the wood parts for the 

windmills. He notified the fire chief, Ray Gillman and the fire bell was rung to call the volunteers. 

 

The watchman hired by the Baker Company, George Scoville, also noticed the fire leaping out of the roof the building. 


